Public Document Pack

TONBRIDGE & MALLING
BOROUGH COUNCIL
EXECUTIVE SERVICES

Chief Executive
Julie Beilby BSc (Hons) MBA

NB - This agenda contains proposals,
recommendations and options. These do
not represent Council policy or decisions
until they have received proper
consideration through the full decision
making process.

To:

Gibson Building
Gibson Drive
Kings Hill, West Malling
Kent ME19 4LZ
West Malling (01732) 844522

Contact: Committee Services
committee.services@tmbc.gov.uk
5 July 2021

MEMBERS OF THE LICENSING AND APPEALS PANEL
(Copies to all Members of the Council)

NB ONLY MEMBERS
OF THE PANEL MAY
PARTICIPATE
Dear Sir/Madam
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the Licensing and Appeals Panel to be held
in the Civic Suite, Gibson Building, Kings Hill, West Malling on Tuesday, 13th July, 2021
commencing at 10.00 am
Members of the Panel are reminded that social distancing measures will be in place for
this meeting.
Information on how to observe the meeting will be published on the Council’s website.
Yours faithfully
JULIE BEILBY
Chief Executive

AGENDA
1.

Guidance on the Conduct of Meetings - Coronavirus
Regulations

5-6

PART 1 - PUBLIC
2.

Apologies for absence

3.

Declarations of Interest
Decisions to be taken under Delegated Powers in accordance with
paragraph 3, part 3 of the Constitution

4.

Application for the Variation of a Club Premises Certificate for
Aylesford Village Club, 57 Rochester Road, Aylesford

7 - 64

The report provides details of an application for the variation of a club premises
certificate made under section 84 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of Aylesford
Village Club, 57 Rochester Road, Aylesford
5.

Urgent Items
Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive

6.

Exclusion of Press and Public

65 - 66

The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would
disclose exempt information
PART 2 - PRIVATE
7.

Urgent Items - Part 2
Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

MEMBERSHIP
Cllr Mrs F A Kemp (Chairman)

Cllr Mrs J A Anderson

Cllr N G Stapleton

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1
Measures under which all meetings of the Council will be conducted after
7 May 2021 to comply with coronavirus regulations and/or guidance in place at
the time.
As it is necessary to maintain social distancing to limit the spread of infection the way
meetings are conducted will change. This page summarises the process. If you have
any questions, please contact Democratic Services via the contact details provided on
the agenda.
Attending Meetings
-

-

-

-

-

All meetings of the Council will be held in the Council Chamber, Gibson Drive,
Kings Hill until social distancing requirements are no longer necessary.
To help contain the virus, Members of the public (including anyone exercising a
right to speak e.g. at an Area Planning Committee) are encouraged to participate
remotely via MS Teams if possible.
Meetings will also be live streamed via our YouTube channel to minimise the need
for the public to attend in person.
Any members of the public wishing to attend in person at the Gibson Building can
view proceedings via video link in the Committee Room (maximum capacity of 10).
Prior notification on a “first come first served” basis for entry to the Committee
Room will be adopted. Anyone wishing to ‘reserve’ a place in the Committee
Room should contact committee.service@tmbc.gov.uk
Public speakers for planning committees will be hosted in a separate area and
escorted into the Council Chamber for their allocated time. There will be a limit on
the number of public speakers at planning committees due to capacity issues
arising from social distancing guidelines.
Public speakers are asked to remain standing to address the Committee to avoid
having to clean or change seats between speakers.
Staff will be available to escort public speakers into the meeting room and to
manage any crowd control issues.
Doors and windows will remain open throughout all meetings to ensure circulation
of fresh air. Attendees are advised to dress appropriately.
All participants are required to wear face coverings when not speaking at
meetings.
Hand sanitiser will be available at entrances.
All attendees must have the NHS Test and Trace app and scan the QR code at
the entrance to the building/meeting room if they wish to participate. Contact
details will be requested on arrival for those who do not have the app.
The toilet facilities at Gibson Building will be open but may be used by only one
person at a time.
Car parking: Attendees are asked to leave a parking space free between vehicles.
Refreshments will not be available, and all participants are advised to bring their
own water or other refreshments.

Anyone with covid symptoms should not come to the Council offices.
Thank you for your assistance.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING & APPEALS COMMITTEE
13 July 2021
Report of the Director of Central Services and Deputy Chief Executive
Part 1- Public
Delegated
1

APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF A CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE
FOR AYLESFORD VILLAGE CLUB, 57 ROCHESTER ROAD, AYLESFORD,
KENT ME20 7BS

1.1

Executive Summary

1.1.1

The Licensing & Appeals Committee sitting as a Panel is asked to consider an
application for the variation of a club premises certificate under section 84 of the
Licensing Act 2003 for the club called Aylesford Village Club, 57 Rochester Road,
Aylesford, Kent ME20 7BS.

1.1.2

The application to vary the club premises certificate seeks to –



Open up an outside area for the consumption of alcohol. The area will be 9M X
12M (108 Msq) directly adjoining the rear of the club. This will allow for socialising
in an outside environment. This will be accessed via an existing door at the rear of
the Club hall.



Have a relaxation of point 2 within Annex 3. This will allow for increased
ventilation and fresh air circulation within the Club in line with the Governments
advice during the Covid 19 pandemic.

For ease, the condition referred to above states (Annex 3, Condition 2) - All doors and
windows to be kept closed at all times except for access and egress.
1.2

Background and Introduction

1.2.1

The application was validated on the 20 May 2021, with the 28 day consultation
period running from the 21 May 2021 until 17 June 2021.

1.2.2

A map showing the location of Aylesford Village Club is shown at Annex 1.

1.2.3

Aylesford Village Club was granted a club premises certificate in November 2005
under the Licensing Act 2003.

Licensing & Appeals - Part 1 Public

Page 7

13 July 2021

2

1.2.4

In August 2019, the club premises certificate was called to Review by local
residents on the grounds of Prevention of crime and disorder, Prevention of public
nuisance, Public safety and Protection of children from harm.

1.2.5

Complaints associated with the Review included – Burning of plastic and
chipboard, noise complaints, drinking on the pavement, drink driving by patrons,
intimidation from staff and drug use.

1.2.6

The Review Hearing was held on 20th September 2019 and the decision was as
follows –



The Club Premises Licence was suspended for one calendar month. During this
period of suspension, the club committee, trustees and staff had to:
1. Fully understand the conditions of the certificate and to have training
and plan how they will comply with those conditions.
2. Review the rules and regulations of the Aylesford Village Club to ensure
they fully comply with the licensing legislation and to plan how these
rules will be fully complied with by both members and guests.



Also, the panel decided to exclude from the certificate the sale of alcohol for
consumption off the premises. The panel pointed out to the management of the
Aylesford Village Club that the consumption of alcohol purchased on the premises
and consumed outside of the licensed premises in breach of the mandatory
conditions is an offence under the Licensing Act 2003.



In addition, the panel imposed the following conditions:
1. Supply the Licensing team of Tonbridge and Malling Borough
Council with the revised Aylesford Village Club rules before the end
of the suspension, and show evidence of effective staff training
having taken place
2. All doors and windows to be kept closed at all times except for
access and egress
3. Implement the Challenge 25 policy and keep a refusals log



1.2.7

Finally with regard to the burning of refuse the panel advised with regret that this
issue was not within its remit but understood residents’ concerns. The panel
suggested that residents should continue to notify the Environmental Health
Department with any concerns regarding noise nuisance and any other public
nuisance. The Aylesford Village Club should also liaise with the Council about the
most appropriate way to dispose of waste.
A copy of the Notice of Determination from this Review Hearing can be seen at
Annex 2.

Licensing & Appeals - Part 1 Public

Page 8

13 July 2021

3

1.2.8

At any stage, during the 28 day public consultation period, a responsible authority,
or other person, may make representations in connection with any of the four
licensing objectives namely:




1.2.9

Prevention of crime and disorder
Prevention of public nuisance
Public safety
Protection of children from harm

Provided that the grounds for the request are relevant to the promotion of one or
more of the four licensing objectives and, in the case of requests by other persons,
are not vexatious, frivolous or repetitive, a hearing must be held to consider the
application.
The Licensing Act 2003 requires the Council to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing
Policy’ that sets out the policies the Council will generally apply to promote the
licensing objectives when making decisions on applications made under the Act.
The Council’s current Statement of Licensing Policy was published in 2019 and
will remain in force until 2024. The Policy will be available at the hearing, for
reference purposes.

1.2.10 Under the 2003 Act, it is the duty of all licensing authorities that, in carrying out
their functions, they must have regard to Guidance issued by the Secretary of
State under section 182. The Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario
or set of circumstances that may arise. Provided that the licensing authority has
properly understood and considered the guidance, it may depart from it when it
has reason to do so. However, as the licensing authority is under a duty to have
regard to the Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for its departure from it.
The Guidance will also be made available at the hearing for reference purposes
1.3

The Application

1.3.1

The applicant is Aylesford Village Club, 57 Rochester Road, Aylesford, Kent
ME20 7BS. The application which was received on 20 May 2021 is attached to
this report as Annex 3.

1.3.2

The application details are as follows:

1.3.3

The addition of an outside area to the rear of the premises for the consumption of
alcohol Monday to Sunday 09:00 – 00:00 (for both on and off the premises)

1.3.4

The removal of Condition two, Annex three which was added following a review
hearing in September 2019. The condition states - All doors and windows to be
kept closed at all times except for access and egress.

1.3.5

A copy of the current licence and conditions is shown at Annex 4.

Licensing & Appeals - Part 1 Public

Page 9

13 July 2021

4

1.4

Reasons for referral

1.4.1

The Licensing Authority must under the Act refer any application for hearing to the
Licensing & Appeals Committee, if relevant representations are made by a
responsible authority or other person.

1.4.2

The Licensing Authority has, during the representation period, received five
representations from other persons which are attached to this report as Annex 5.
Within these representations are a number of photographs taken which show the
club door being left open and people smoking outside.

1.4.3

The Licensing Authority also received two representations from statutory
consultees, these are shown at Annex 6 and Annex 7.

1.4.4

Responses received from statutory consultees:
Fire Safety

No Comments

Trading Standards

No Response

Social Service

No Response

Police

Representation Received – Annex 6

Environmental Health (EH)

EP – Representation Received - Annex 7
Food Safety – No Comments

Health & Safety

No Response

Public Health

No Response

Planning

No Planning Restrictions

1.4.5

All those who have made a representation have been invited to attend this
hearing.

1.5

Policy Considerations

1.5.1

The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s Guidance apply to this
application:
Chapter 2 – The licensing objectives
Chapter 8 – Applications for premises licences
Chapter 9 – Determining applications
Chapter 10 – Conditions attached to Premises Licences

1.5.2

The following paragraphs of the Councils’ Statement of Licensing Policy apply to
this application:
Section 3 – Licensing Authority general policy considerations
Section 4 – Responsible Authorities and other persons

Licensing & Appeals - Part 1 Public

Page 10

13 July 2021

5

Sections 8 – In making decisions in respect to new premises licences.
Sections 17 – Licence conditions - appropriate and proportionate in order to
promote the licensing objectives at that premises
1.6

Legal Implications

1.6.1

Section 4 of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the Licensing Authority to carry out its
functions with a view to promoting the Licensing Objectives a)
b)
c)
d)

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety
The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

1.6.2

Having regard to the relevant representations, the Panel must take such of the steps
set out at paragraph 1.7.1 below, as it considers appropriate, for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

1.6.3

Section 4(3) of the Licensing Act also requires the Licensing Authority to have
regard to the published statement of Licensing Policy and any guidance issued by
the Secretary of State under section 182.

1.6.4

An application for a variation of a premises licence may be made under s.84 of the
Act may be made by the holder of the licence. An application made under s.84 of
the Act must be determined in accordance with s. 85 of the Act.

1.6.5

Where relevant representations are made, the authority must—
(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and
each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is
unnecessary, and
(b) having regard to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned
in para. 1.7 (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives.

1.6.6

The Licensing Act 2003 section 181 and Schedule 5 makes provision for appeals
to be made by the applicant and those making representations, against decisions
of the Licensing Authority to the Magistrates Court.

1.7

Options Open to the Panel

1.7.1

The steps are—
(a) to modify the conditions of the licence;
(b) to reject the whole or part of the application;

Licensing & Appeals - Part 1 Public

Page 11

13 July 2021

6

and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is
altered or omitted or any new condition is added.
1.8

Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.8.1

None unless there is a successful appeal against the Panel’s decision to the
Magistrates’ Court. This could result in costs being awarded against the Council.

1.9

Risk Assessment

1.9.1

Departure from the Guidance and Policy could lead to an increased risk on an
appeal. Similar risks arise if any decision made is not evidence based and
proportionate.

1.10

Equality Impact Assessment

1.11

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance
to the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users.

1.12

Recommendations

1.12.1 That members determine the application carefully, considering the application
along with any representations made and take such steps as the Panel considers
appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives.
Background papers:

contact: Katie Shipman
6027

Licensing Act 2003
Live Music Act 2012
Deregulation Act 2015
Licensing Act Guidance
Statement of Licensing Policy

Adrian Stanfield
Director of Central Services and Deputy Chief Executive

Licensing & Appeals - Part 1 Public

Page 12

13 July 2021

ARCGIS WEB MAP
Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS

Page 13
Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2021. OS 100030994.

O

Scale 1:500

© Crow n cop yrig ht and d ata ba se righ ts 20 21 Ordn an ce S urvey 1 00 02 33 00

Map Dated: 15 Jun 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

LICENSING ACT 2003 – Section 88
Notice of determination of an application to review a club premises
certificate
Reference:
19/01006/CLUB
Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council, being the relevant Licensing Authority in this
matter, on 2nd August 2019 received an application for a review of a club premises
certificate in respect of the premises known as Aylesford Village Club, 57 Rochester
Road, Aylesford, Kent. ME20 7BS
On the 20th September 2019 a hearing was held to consider this application and
having considered it, the Licensing and Appeals Committee sitting as a panel (“the
Panel”) determined as follows:
The Panel considered carefully the written report of the Director of Central Services
and Deputy Chief Executive, together with the application and written representations
received during the statutory consultation period. It also considered the oral
representations made to it by the applicant and other interested parties during the
Hearing.
The Panel was mindful of its obligations under section 88(3) of the Licensing Act
2003, which stated that, having regard to the application and representations, the
licensing authority must take such steps set out in section 88(4) as it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The Panel also had
particular regard to the provisions of the amended guidance issued under section
182 of the 2003 Act and the Council’s statement of licensing policy.
The Panel RESOLVED that the club premises certificate be suspended for a period
of one calendar month, because the panel were satisfied that there had been
unacceptable nuisance at the premises.
The panel stated that during the period of suspension, it expected the Committee,
Trustees and Staff of the Aylesford Village Club to:
1. Fully understand the conditions of the certificate and to have training and plan
how they will comply with those conditions.
2. Review the rules and regulations of the Aylesford Village Club to ensure they
fully comply with the licensing legislation and to plan how these rules will be
fully complied with by both members and guests.
Also, the panel decided to exclude from the certificate the sale of alcohol for
consumption off the premises. The panel pointed out to the management of the
Aylesford Village Club that the consumption of alcohol purchased on the premises
and consumed outside of the licensed premises in breach of the mandatory
conditions is an offence under the Licensing Act 2003.
In addition, the panel imposed the following conditions:
1. Supply the Licensing team of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council with the
revised Aylesford Village Club rules before the end of the suspension, and

Page 15

show evidence of effective staff training having taken place
2. All doors and windows to be kept closed at all times except for access and
egress
3. Implement the Challenge 25 policy and keep a refusals log
Finally with regard to the burning of refuse the panel advised with regret that this
issue was not within its remit, but understood residents’ concerns. The panel
suggested that residents should continue to notify the Environmental Health
Department with any concerns regarding noise nuisance and any other public
nuisance. The Aylesford Village Club should also liaise with the Council about the
most appropriate way to dispose of waste.
Dated: 24th September 2019
Signed

Chairman Licensing & Appeals Panel

Signed

Licensing Officer

Please address any communications to:
Licensing Services
Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building
Gibson Drive
Kings Hill
Kent ME19 4LZ
Note: Pursuant to Part 1 of Schedule 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended, any
party eligible to appeal must appeal to a magistrates' court within 21 days beginning
with the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the
decision appealed against.

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Page 34

Schedule 13
Part A
Club Premises Certificate
Tonbridge & Malling Borough Council

Regulation 35,36

Club Premises Certificate Number

19/01006/CLUB issued 6th December 2019

Club Details
Name of club in whose name this certificate is granted and relevant postal address of club
Aylesford Village Club
57 Rochester Road
Aylesford
Kent
ME20 7BS
Telephone number
The name and postal address of club secretary:
Aylesford Village Club
57 Rochester Road
Aylesford
Kent
ME20 7BS
Premises Licence holder Telephone Number

01622 716056

Where the club premises certificate is time limited the dates
Not applicable

Qualifying club activities authorised by the certificate
Sale of Alcohol
Performance of Dance
Films
Indoor Sporting Event
Live Music
Recorded Music
Anything of a similar description to
Late Night Refreshment
Page 1 of 9
Part A of the Club Premises Certificate for Aylesford Village Club issued by
The Licensing Authority of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4LZ
Telephone Number 01732 876368

Page 35

Times the certificate authorises the carrying out of qualifying club activities
Sale of Alcohol
Monday to Sunday

09:00 - 00:00

Performance of Dance
Sunday
12:00 - 23:00
Monday to Saturday
12:00 - 00:00
Films
Monday to Sunday

09:00 - 00:00

Indoor Sporting Event
Sunday
12:00 - 23:00
Monday to Saturday
12:00 - 00:00
Live Music
Sunday
Monday to Saturday

12:00 - 23:00
12:00 - 00:00

Recorded Music
Sunday
Monday to Saturday

12:00 - 23:00
12:00 - 00:00

Anything of a similar description to live, recorded music and dance
Monday to Sunday
09:00 - 00:00
Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Sunday
23:00 - 00:30

The opening hours of the Club
Monday to Sunday

09:00 - 00:30

Where the certificate authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premise

Page 2 of 9
Part A of the Club Premises Certificate for Aylesford Village Club issued by
The Licensing Authority of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4LZ
Telephone Number 01732 876368

Page 36

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
The licence is granted subject to the Mandatory conditions for sale of alcohol as set out in the Licensing Act
2003 as amended by the Licensing Act 2003 (Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010 and Order 2014.

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence –
(a)
(b)

At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises Licence; or
At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his Personal
Licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by a person who holds a
Personal Licence.

3. (1)
(2)

The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or
participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.
a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage,
individuals to –
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on
the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to
the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a
significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the
purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which carries
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity
of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise antisocial behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner.
e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other
person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

Page 3 of 9
Part A of the Club Premises Certificate for Aylesford Village Club issued by
The Licensing Authority of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4LZ
Telephone Number 01732 876368

Page 37

4.

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where
it is reasonably available.

5.

(1)
The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2)
The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licences must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3)
The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either:(a) a holographic mark or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.
6.

The responsible person shall ensure that –
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other
than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a
securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures –

(i)

beer or cider: ½ pint;

(ii)

gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and

(iii)

still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

(b)

these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to
customers on the premises; and

(c)

where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold,
the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

Page 4 of 9
Part A of the Club Premises Certificate for Aylesford Village Club issued by
The Licensing Authority of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4LZ
Telephone Number 01732 876368

Page 38

Minimum Drinks Pricing
1.

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises
for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2.

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 –
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula –
P = D + (DxV)
Where –
(i)P is the permitted price
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of
the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence
–
(i)

The holder of the premises licence

(ii)

The designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii)

The personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises
certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables the
member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994.
3.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from the paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the
price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4.

(1)
Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day
(“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2)
The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Page 5 of 9
Part A of the Club Premises Certificate for Aylesford Village Club issued by
The Licensing Authority of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4LZ
Telephone Number 01732 876368

Page 39

Exhibition of Films
1.Where a premises licence authorises the exhibition of films, the licence must include a condition requiring the
admission of children to the exhibition of any film to be restricted in accordance with this section.
2.Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, unless subsection (3)(b) applies, admission of
children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation by that body.
3.Where
(a) The film classification body is not specified in the licence, or
(b) The relevant licensing authority has notified the holder of the licence that this subsection applies to the
film in question,
admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing
authority.
4.In this section “children” means any person aged under 18; and
“film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the authority under Section 4 of the Video
Recordings Act 1984(c39) (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).

Door Supervision (except theatres, cinemas, bingo halls and casinos)
1.Where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified times one or more individuals must be at the
premises to carry out a security activity, each such individual must:
(a)
be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security Industry Act
2001; or
(b)
be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of the Act.
2.But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed:
(a)
in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001
(c12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films); or
(b)
in respect of premises in relation to:
(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8(3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used
exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising plays or films or
under a gaming licence), or
(ii) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by regulations under
that Act.
3.For the purposes of this section:
(a)
“security activity” means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies, and, which is
licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act, (see Section 3(2) of that Act) and
(b)
paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it applies in
relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Page 6 of 9
Part A of the Club Premises Certificate for Aylesford Village Club issued by
The Licensing Authority of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4LZ
Telephone Number 01732 876368

Page 40

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
1

In accordance with club rules lodged with Tonbridge & Malling with the original application dated 19th
July 2005

2

No alterations of the club rules affecting the sale of intoxicating liquor to non-members shall be made
without the consent of the Tonbridge & Malling Alcohol & Entertainments Licensing Committee

Page 7 of 9
Part A of the Club Premises Certificate for Aylesford Village Club issued by
The Licensing Authority of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4LZ
Telephone Number 01732 876368

Page 41

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
1. Supply the Licensing team of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council with the revised Aylesford Village
Club rules before the end of the suspension, and show evidence of effective staff training having taken
place.
2. All doors and windows to be kept closed at all times except for access and egress.
3. Implement the Challenge 25 policy and keep a refusals log.
4. Noise attributable to the playing of live or recorded music within the premises shall not be audible within
neighbouring houses with windows open in a manner typical for ventilation

Page 8 of 9
Part A of the Club Premises Certificate for Aylesford Village Club issued by
The Licensing Authority of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4LZ
Telephone Number 01732 876368

Page 42

Annex 4 – Plans

Page 9 of 9
Part A of the Club Premises Certificate for Aylesford Village Club issued by
The Licensing Authority of Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building, Gibson Drive, Kings Hill, West Malling, Kent, ME19 4LZ
Telephone Number 01732 876368

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Page 49

Page 50

Page 51

Page 52

Page 53

Page 54

Page 55

Page 56

Page 57

Page 58

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Chief officer of police representation in relation to an
application for variation of club premises certificate
made under Part 4 Section 84 Licensing Act 2003
(S85 Licensing Act 2003)

Details of person or body making representation
Name of chief officer of
police
Postal address:
(Area headquarters)
Email address
Telephone number:

Chief Inspector Changizi
Tonbridge Police Station
Pembury Road
Tonbridge
TN9 2HS
west.division.licensing@kent.police.uk

Details of premises representation is about
Name of premises:

Aylesford Village Club

Address of premises:

57 Rochester Road
Aylesford
Kent
ME20 7BS
20th May 2021

Date application
received by police
Date representation
sent to Licensing
Authority

17th June 2021
Must be within 28 days of receipt –
The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005. Part 4 Reg. 22.

The chief officer of police has received an application for the variation of a club
premises certificate made under the provisions of Section 84 Licensing Act 2003, and
under Section 85 of that act asks the Licensing Authority to consider these
representations in respect of: Please tick one or more of the licensing objectives that the representation relates to:
Prevention of crime and disorder
Public Safety
Prevention of public nuisance
Protection of children from harm

The relevant representations within the meaning of S.85(5) of the Licensing Act satisfy the
requirements of S.85 (6) of that Act and are as follows:

Page 61

Kent Police : Area Operations
Form No. 3487 rev Jan 2006 [erev 3/06] v1.1

Policy M114

1

Please give the reason for the representation and detail the evidence supporting
it:
A variation of club premises certificate has been received from Aylesford Village Club seeking to
utilise an area to the rear of the club for patrons to drink outside, they also seek to remove
condition 2 in Annexe 3 which was imposed by the licensing committee at the hearing of a review
of the club premises certificate which was instigated by local residents.
The terminal hour for sale of alcohol is midnight, Monday to Sunday, and there is no suggestion
within this variation that these hours would be different for the outside area.
This premises has a history of noise issues in relation to music and patrons culminating in a review
of the club premises certificate in September 2019 resulting in a period of suspension and the
imposition of conditions upon the certificate. Since this time it has not yet been possible to assess
the management and control of the premises as the suspension ended during the winter and
premises were then closed due to the pandemic lockdown.
The variation application does not give any details of how patrons will be controlled by the
management of the premises, the proposed outside area is to the rear of the premises and
therefore at the furthest point from the bar and would require staff to be situated in this area to
control patrons. The application seeks to relax or remove the condition requiring doors and
windows to be closed, there is mention of a noise limiter being fitted however which should go
some way to assisting with the noise from entertainment but will not prevent the escape of patron
noise from the venue.
Kent Police does not support this application to vary the club premises certificate due to the
significant risk of public nuisance being caused to the local community from patron noise and club
activities. It is acknowledged that the past year has put considerable pressure on licensed premises
of all types but it remains necessary to ensure there is a balance between the needs of the club
and the needs of the local community that it aims to serve.
Please use separate sheets where necessary

Suggested conditions that could be added to the certificate to remedy the
representation or other suggestions the Licensing Sub Committee may consider:
Please use separate sheets where necessary

Due to the history of this premises and there are no measures provided in the operating
schedule to address these concerns it is felt that the applicant should address these matters and
consider submitting further information prior to any consideration being given to these changes
to the club premises certificate.

Signed:
Print name:

Date:
PSE Ellen Shaw

17/06/2021

Force Number: 52479

pp Chief Officer of Police for the Police Area in which the licensed premises are situated
Representation may be made at any time during the 28 consecutive days starting on the day after the day on
which the application to which it relates was given to the authority by the applicant.
Please return this form along with any additional sheets to the Licensing Authority.
This form must be returned within the Statutory Period

Page 62
Kent Police : Area Operations
Form No. 3487 rev Jan 2006 [erev 3/06] v1.1

Policy M114

2

OBJECTION to the Application to
Vary a Club Premises Licence
Premises: Aylesford Village Club, 57 Rochester Road, Aylesford.
Environmental Protection Comments:
An application has been made by Aylesford Village Club to Vary their Club Premises Licence
to allow for the use of an outside area for the consumption of alcohol and to allow doors
and windows to kept open whilst the premises are open.
The current Condition 2 of Annex 3 requires:
•

All doors and windows to be kept closed at all times except for access and egress.

This Condition is designed to control the emission of noise from the Premises so that it does
not unduly impact upon neighbours in the locality. The Applicant has requested a relaxation
of this Condition, but they have not indicated specifically how they wish it to be relaxed
(other than stating it will be to increase the flow of air through the premises in line with
Govt. guidance for the control of COVID-19).
I believe that the opening of doors and windows to the premises will allow an undue
amount of noise out of the premises that could adversely impact residents in the locality.
Although the Amplified/Live music may be able to be controlled by means of the existing
noise limiter, this will need to be substantially adjusted downwards to lower the ‘allowed’
level of music within the premises. This may effectively make the playing of music at the
premises impossible.
I am not aware of a means that could be used to control patron noise other than the closing
of doors and windows.
Members will also be aware of the Club Premises Licence Review called by residents in
2019. This resulted in a suspension to the Licence and the inclusion of Condition 2 in Annex
3 (as detailed above) to the Club Premises Licence, which supplemented the existing
Condition:
•

Noise attributable to the playing of live or recorded music within the premises shall not be
audible within neighbouring houses with windows open in a manner typical for ventilation.

No information has been provided by the Applicant as to how they will ensure that this
Condition is met.
Over the past 10 years the following complaints have been received in the Environmental
Protection team that are pertinent to the Licensing Objectives:
•

16/00729/NOIENT, complaint about music and patron noise, registered 15-Sep-16.
Only informal action was taken and the case was closed on 05-Dec-16.

C:\Users\ksls\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\H598UY34\AylesVillageClub_Variation_210
610_Comments.docx

Page 63

•

19/00503/NOICOM, complaint about noisy patrons, car stereos and amplified music,
registered 29-Jul-19. This case was largely superseded by the Club Premises Licence
Review called by residents

In addition to these, there have been 6 other Environmental Protection complaints. These
related to bonfires (2019, 2018 & 2016); chiller noise, dartboard noise and smoking (2013);
dartboard noise (2012); and smoking (2009). As these are not pertinent to the Licensing
Objectives, I have not provided further information on them.
An Abatement Notice in respect of amplified music has been served to the premises in the
past, but as this was in 1997 it would no longer be enforceable.

In light of the above, I would wish to register an OBJECTION to the proposed Variation.

C:\Users\ksls\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\H598UY34\AylesVillageClub_Variation_210
610_Comments.docx

Page 64

Agenda Item 6
The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would
disclose exempt information.

ANY REPORTS APPEARING AFTER THIS PAGE CONTAIN EXEMPT
INFORMATION

Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank

